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Auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated balance sheet of
ICI Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiary company (together referred to as Group) as
at 30 June 2014 and the related consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flow statement and consolidated statement of changes in
equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended. We have also expressed
separate opinions on the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company namely
ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Holding
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordingly
included such tests of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairty the financial position of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary company as at 30 June 2014 and the results of their operations for the year
then ended.

Chartered Accountantsg'fﬂﬂ"\
Audit Engagement Partner: Sharig Ali Zaidi

Karachi



ICl Pakistan Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at June 30, 2014

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Long-term investment
Long-term loans
Long-term deposits and prepayments

Current assets

Stores and spares

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
Other receivables

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves
Authorised capital

1,500,000,000 (2013: 1,500,000,000) ordinary shares

of Rs 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Capital reserves

Unappropriated profit

Total equity

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and

equipment
Liabilities
Non-current liahilities

Provisions for non-management staff gratuity
Long-term loans
Deferred tax liability - net

Current liabilities

Current portion of long term loans

Trade and other payables

Short-term borrowings and running finance

Contingencies and commitments

Total equity and liabilities

Note

~N O

10
11
12
13

14

15
16

17

18
19
20

21
22

23

Amounts in Rs '000

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Muhammad Sohail Tabba
Chairman / Director
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Chief Execulive

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013
11,808,502 10,727,467
64,261 45,123
11,872,763 10,772,590
2,500 2,500
256,525 202,071
27,843 33,338
286,868 237,909
12,159,631 11,010,499
617,668 615,782
4,607,216 4,594,877
883,710 891,186
193,000 160,640
220,018 161,888
1,488,685 1,188,212
1,765,784 1,474,066
858,204 836,143
10,634,285 9,922,794
22,793,916 20,933,293
15,000,000 15,000,000
923,591 923,591
309,643 309,643
10,125,694 8,544,999
11,358,928 9,778,233
784,517 843.037
78,081 79,917
2,314,805 1,887,026
1,093,718 1,101,111
3,486,604 3.068,054
872,221 -
5,854,278 4,589,420
437,368 2,654,549
7,163,867 7,243,969
22,793,916 20,933,203
Muhammmad Abid Ganatra
Chief Financial Officer




IC1 Pakistan Limited

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

For the year ended June 30, 2014

Turnover 25
Sales tax, commission and discounts 24
Net sales, commission and toll income

Cost of sales 25
Gross profit

Selling and distribution expenses 27
Administration and general expenses 28
Operating result

Other charges 29
Finance costs 30
Other income 31
Profit before taxation

Taxation 32
Profit after taxation

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 33

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees)

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

WA

Muhammad Sohail Tabbha
Chairman / Director
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For the year
ended
June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs '000

For the six months
period ended
June 30, 2013

42,698,659 20,133,977
(4,620,382) (1,893,940)
38,078,277 18,240,037
(33,280,470) (16,105,080)
4,797,807 2,134,957
(1,530,254) (523,391)
(896,407) (361,635)
2,371,146 1,249,931
(191,033) (90,550)
(388,024) {187,793)
(579,057} (278,343)
321,776 125,600
2,113,865 1,097,188
(278,748) (338,321)
1,835,117 758,867
19.87 8.22
For the year For the year
ended ended

June 30, 2014

19.87

June 30, 2013

15.36

Asif Jooma
Chief Executive

Muhammad Abid Ganatra
Chief Financial Officer




ICI Pakistan Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Profit for the year / period

items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans

Tax effect

Total comprehensive income for the year / period

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Asif Jooma
Chief Executive

Muhammad Sohail Tabba
Chairman / Director

Page 3

Amounts in Rs '000

For the year
ended
June 30, 2014

For the six
months period
ended
June 30, 2013

1,835,117 758,867
52,914 336,815
{17,462) (117,885)
35,452 218,930
1,870,569 977,797

vt

Muhammad Abid Ganatra
Chief Financial Officer




ICI Pakistan Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation - note 3.5 & 4.2
Loss / (gain} on disposal of property, plant and equipment - note 29 & 31
Wirite offs - note 3.2.2 & 4.1
Provision for staff retirement benefit plan - note 18.1.1
Provisions / (reversal) for non-management staif gratuity
and eligible retired employees' medical scheme
Interest on bank deposits
Interest expense

Movement in:

Working capital

Long-term loans

Long-term deposits and prepayments
Cash generated from / (used in) operations

Payments for :
Staff retirement benefit pension plans - note 18.1.2
Non-management staff gratuity and eligible retired employees'
medical scheme
Taxation
Interest
Net cash generated from / {used in} operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitles
Payments for capital expenditure
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Interest received on bank deposits
Net cash used in investing activities

Page 4

Amounts in Rs '000

For the year For the six
ended months pericd
June 30, 2014 ended

June 30, 2013

2,413,865 1,097,188
1,381,219 580,439
14,081 (363)

27,404 -
52,740 48,676
4,800 (275,275)

(368) :
381,878 162,884
3,975,619 1,613,549
839,062 (1,683,437)
(54,455) {7.639)
5,495 7.553
4,765,721 (69,974)
(63,178) (94,556)
(23,695) (12,174)
(574,280) (551,583)
{351,889) {151,058}
3,752,679 (879,326)
(2,454,705) (969,981)
7,626 5,358

368 -
(2.446,711) (964,623)

g™




ICI Pakistan Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2014
Amounts in Rs ‘000

For the year For the six
ended months period
June 30, 2014 ended

June 30, 2013
Cash flows from financing activities

Long-term loans 1,300,000 1,596,756
Dividends paid (366,726) (143,273)
Net cash generated from financing activities 933,274 1,453,483
Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,239,242 {390,4685)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year / period (1,818,406) {1,427,940)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / period 420,836 (1,618,406)

Movement in working capital

{increase) / decrease In current assets

Stores and spares (1,886) (18,422}
Stock-in-trade (12,338} 816,734
Trade debts 7,476 (295,493)
Loans and advances (32,360) 33,208
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 10,824 (20,292}
Other receivables (300,473) (122,689)
(328,758} 393,046
Incraase / (decreass) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 1,167,820 (2,076,483)
839,062 (1,683,437)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / period comprise of:
Cash and bank balances - note 14 858,204 836,143
Short-term borrowings and running finance - note 22 {437,368B) (2,654,549)
420,836 {1,818,406)

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

LW

Muhammad Schail Tabba Asif Jooma Muhammad Abid Ganatra
Chaimman / Director Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Page 5



ICI Pakistan Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2014

As at January 01, 2013
Final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2012 @ Rs 2.00 per share
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income for the pericd
Total comprehensive Income
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment - incremental depreciation
for the period - net of deferred tax - nole 17

As at June 30, 2013
Interim dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2014 @ Rs 4.00 per share
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property,
ptant and equipment - incremental depreciation
for the year - net of deferred tax - note 17

As at June 20, 2014

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Muhammad Sohall Tabba
Chairman / Director

Pege 8

Amounts in Rs 000

Issued, Capiltal Unappropriated Total
subscribed raserves profit
and paid-up
caplital
923,591 309,643 7,710,090 8,943,124
] - 11 - 11 (184,718} | (184.718)]
- - {184,718) (184,718)
- - 758,867 758,867
- - 218,930 218,930
- - 977,797 977,797
- - 41,830 41,830
- - 41,830 41,830
923,691 309,643 8,544,999 9,778,233
- - (369,436) (369,436)
- - {369,436) (369,436}
- - 1,835,117 1,835117
35,452 35,452
1,870,569 1,870,569
- - 79,562 79,562 |
- - 79,562 79,562
923,591 309,643 10,125,694 11,358,928
gur
Asif Jooma Muhammad Abld Ganatra
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer



ICI Pakistan Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

2.1

2.2

Page 7

Status and Nature of Business
The Group consists of.

® |Cl Pakistan Limited; and
m |Cl Pakistan PowerGen Limited.

ICI Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Karachi,
Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges.

ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited (“the Subsidiary”) is incorporated in Pakistan as an unlisted
public company and is a wholly owned subsidiary company of ICl Pakistan Limited.

The Company is engaged in the manufacture of polyester staple fibre, POY chips, soda ash,
specialty chemicals, sodium bicarbonate and polyurethanes; marketing of seeds, toll
manufactured and imported pharmaceuticals and animal health products; and merchanting of
general chemicals. It also acts as an indenting agent and toll manufacturer.

The Subsidiary is engaged in generating, selling and supplying electricity to the Company.
The Group's registered office is situated at 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Following are the details of significant accounting policies.

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of
such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In

case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall
prevail.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except:

a) certain classes of property, plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold and
leasehold land and plant and machinery) have been measured at revalued amounts; and

b) Provisicn for management staff gratuity, non-management staff gratuity, and eligible retired
employees’ medical scheme is stated at present value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and
expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events,
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively commencing from the period of
revision. W



2.3

2.4

2.5
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Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material

adjustments to the consolidated financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note
43,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies, here-in-after referred to as “the Group”.

A company is a subsidiary, if an entity (the Holding Company) directly or indirectly controls,
beneficially owns or holds more than fifty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power
to elect and appoint more than fifty percent of its directors.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Holding Company, using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and |losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line
by line basis and carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated
against the subsidiary companies’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold & leasehold land and
plant & machinery) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. Freehold land, buildings on freehold land and leasehold land and plant and machinery are
stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment if any. Cost
of certain property, plant and equipment comprises historical cost. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing parts of the property, piant and equipment and the cost of borrowings for long-term
construction projects, if the recognition criteria are met.

Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount
of an asset is written off to profit and loss account over its estimated useful life after taking into
account residual value, if material. The cost of leasehold land is depreciated in equal
installments over the lease period. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which
the asset is available for use and on disposals up to the month of disposal.

The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and
equipment that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each
balance sheet date, and adjusted, if appropriate.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred.
Improvements are capitalised when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are
derecognised.

Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related
surplus / deficit on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to
unappropriated profit.

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain softwares, licenses (including extraction
rights, software licenses, etc.) and property rights, are capitalised initially at cost and
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits w/‘

4



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Page 9

embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are recognized in profit
and loss account as incurred.

Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognized
in profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible

assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate.

Stores, spares and consumables

Stores, spares and consumables are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net
realisable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less net estimated cost to sell, which is generally equivalent to replacement cost. ltems

in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to
the balance sheet date.

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable
value.

Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value signifies the

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses.

Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon
up to the balance sheet date.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initiaily at fair value plus directly attributable
cost, if any, and subsequently measured at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables (Refer note 40.6.1).

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in
the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is recognised in other
comprehensive income or below equity, respectively.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively
enacted rates of taxation after taking into account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The
charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities,
using the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard the effects on
deferred taxation on the portion of income expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted
in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release — 27 of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

The Group recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for
the foreseeable future will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realisedt\gp\\
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside
profit and loss account. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Further, the Group recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held
with banks. Running finance facilities availed by the Group, which are payable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as part of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

Impairment
Financial assets

Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence that they are impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that
a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a
negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a
debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually
significant receivables found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for
any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables
with similar risk characteristics.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as
the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit
and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the
impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable
amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or groups of assets (“the cash-generating unit, or CGU").

The Group's corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. if there is an indication
that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU
to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of
an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in profit and loss account.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised D‘gw'

/)
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Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on Revaluation of
property, plant and equipment” account shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance
with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The said section was
amended through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002 and accordingly the Group
has adopted the following accounting treatment of depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in

view the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan's (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated
January 13, 2003:

a) depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned

to such assets on revaluation and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss
account; and

b) an amount equal to incrementali depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is
transferred from “Surplus on Revaluation of property plant and equipment’ account to
unappropriated profit / loss through Statement of Changes in Equity to record realization of
surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.

Staff retirement benefits

The Group's retirement benefit plans comprise of provident funds, pensions, gratuity schemes
and a medical scheme for eligible retired employees.

Defined benefit plans

The Group operates a funded pension scheme and a funded gratuity scheme for management
staff. The pension and gratuity schemes are salary schemes providing pension and lump sums,
respectively. Pension and gratuity schemes for management staff are invested through two
approved trust funds. The Group also operates gratuity scheme for non-management staff and
the pensioners’ medical scheme which are unfunded. The pension and gratuity plans are final
salary plans. The pensioner's medical plan reimburses actual medical expenses to pensioners

as per entitlement. The Group recognises expense in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee
Benefits".

An actuarial valuation of al! defined benefit schemes is conducted every year. The valuation
uses the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in fuli in the
period in which they occur in other comprehensive income.

All past service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs
and when the Group has recognized related restructuring or termination benefits.

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates two registered contributory provident funds for its entire staff and a
registered defined contribution superannuation fund for its management staff, who have either
opted for this fund by July 31, 2004 or have joined the Group after April 30, 2004. In addition to
this, the Group also provides group insurance to all its employees.

Compensated absences

The Group recognizes the accrual for compensated absences in respect of employees in which
these are earned up to the balance sheet date. The accrual has been recognized on the basis
of actuarial valuation.

Operating leases / ljarah contracts

Leases, other than those under ljarah contracts, in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor, are classified as operating leases. ljarah
contracts are classified as operating leases irrespective of whether significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) and ljarah contracts are charged to the profit and
loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the Ieasewg\“‘
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2.20

2,21

2.22

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if
any.

Borrowings and their cost

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the
extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. The amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any,
and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the foreign
exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group's functional and presentation
currency.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and government levies.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the customer. For those products which are often sold with

a right of return, accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for such returns at the
time of sale. '

Commission income is recognised on date of shipment from supplierst'{w'

Page 12
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2.26

2.27

Profit on short-term deposits is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the effective
interest rate method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.
Toll manufacturing income is recognised when services are rendered.

Financial expense and financial income

Financial expenses are recognised using the effective interest rate method and comprise foreign
currency losses and markup / interest expense on borrowings.

Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested. Markup / interest income is
recognised as it accrues in profit and loss account, using the effective interest rate method.

Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in
which the dividends are approved.

Segment reporting

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating
segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Group's other components. An operating segment's operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Chief Executive Officer (the CEO) to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be aliocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly
corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related income and expenditure. Segment
capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and
equipment.

The business segments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject to risks
and rewards which differ from the risk and rewards of other segments. Segments reported are
Polyester, Soda Ash, Life Sciences, Chemicals and others (PowerGen), which also reflects the
management structure of the Group.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and
interest rate risks arising from operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance
with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. Derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting are accounted for accordingly
whereas, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as held for
trading instruments. All changes in the fair value are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Off-setting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
financial statements only when there is, legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised
amount and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and to
settle the liabilities simultaneouslyégpl\
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Amounts in Rs 000
As at Jurw J0, As at June 30

2014 2013

Property, plunt and aquipment
The following is & of proparty. plant and equipment:
Operating proparty, plant and equipment - note 3.2 10,900,548 8,147,259
Capital work-in-progress - nats 3.7 898,958 2,580,208

—Tiamsez _ Torarest
The follawing |s & of operating property. plant and aquipmant:

Land Lims beds Bulidings Plant and Raitway Ralling Fumiture and Total
on fraahol on On inery sidings stock and squipment
tand land land vehithes
Freahold Lsasshold
Note 2. Note 3.3 Note 3.3 & 5.4
As At Jurw 30, 2014

Nest carrying value basis
Opening nat book value (NBY) 1,605 - 134,525 21,322 855,011 6,487,300 - 12,965 104,251 8,147,258
Addition { transfer (at cost) - note 3.2 1 98,137 - 10,899 92,818 443,598 3,448,311 . 8,000 63,602 4,158,452
Disposal / transfer (at NBV) . - - {30) {260} 116,162) . (4,700) {555) [21,707)
Adjustmenis (st NBV) - note 3.2.2 [L}] (29) {15) {87,351) 86,751 125,042) - 8377 (43,085} {41.998)
Depreciation chargs - note 3.8 = 29 (11,548) {50,3946) {105,011} {1.095,806) - {14,730} {57.199) {1,334,462)
Nat book value 438.021 - 132 850 278,361 1,080,087 8,808,000 - 26,402 147,015 10,908,548
Gross carrying valus basis
Cost/ Revaluation 438,021 562,168 250,556 2,462,213 1,088,029 23,281,028 207 118,810 491,723 28,572,742
Accumulaled deprecistion - 1582, 168) [118,608) (2 185952 {807,942)  {14,474,228] {297) {92,208) {344,708} {18,684,197)
Neat book valua 438,021 = 133,860 276,381 1,080,087 8,808,500 - 26,402 147,015 10,908 548
Depretistions rate % per annum > 2tc 4 Sto25 $to0 50 Ji0 33,33 333 to 50 33 1010333 10 to 50

As ai Juna 30, 2013

Net carrying value basis

Opaning net book vatue 341,885 - 127.434 337,375 883,058 6,582,328 - 24,010 188,593 8,303,581
Addition / transfer {at cost) . B 12,534 6,983 14,382 AS7.5T9 . 400 14211 408,200
Disposal { transtar {at NBV) = = = - {803} {3,854} - {508} {29) {4,994)
Dapraciation charge - note 3.5 = = 15,443} {25,048) {42.527) [448.851) = {7,837) (20.824) (559,526}
Nel book value 341,885 4 134,525 21322 855,011 6.467.300 - 12,665 184,251 8,147.259
Gross carrying valus basis
Cost/ Revaluation 341,885 567,799 239,857 1.258.083 1,470,648 19,891.178 297 94,800 §85,569 24 027,84
Accumulated depraciation L {567,789} {105,132} (834,781) 1815,635)  {13,493.876) {297} (81,726} {481,348} (18,480,515
Net book vahie 341,805 * 134 525 321,322 855.011 §.407,300 - 12 885 184,251 8,147,258
282 242 == =2 22 = oL
Depraclation rate % par annum - 2t04 3331075 5t 10 25w 10 333to 50 3.33 1025 10103323

Additions 10 plani and machinery inciudes Interest charge on lang-larm laan cbtainad for coal fired boilar project amounting to Rs 231.406 million. Out of Rs 231 408 million, 8n amount of Rs #5408
million was incurred dufing the yaar anded June 30, 2014

During the year, the Group appointed a professional firm o conduct a physical venfication axercise lor reconciling physical fixed assels wtlh lhe books of account, As per their recommendslion. fixed
aasat having net book value ol Rs. 27. 295 million and Rs. 14.701 miltion have basn wniten off and reciassifiad to intangible n3sets

As at June 30, As at Juna 30

2014 2013
Proparty. plant and equipment Includas the following major spare parts and stand by equipment:
Cost JGGIS‘IS 345.981
Nat book value I'S{NT 205170
Subsequent to ravaluation on October 1. 1859, September 30, 2000 and Decembar 15. 2008 which had resulted in & surplus of Re 14.207 milion, Re 1,588.889 milion and Rs 704 752 milion,
respectively, the land, buiidings on freehold and hold tand and plant and hinary wors lued again on O 31, 2011 resulting in & net surplus of Rs 848.181 million, respectivaly. The
valuation was conducted by an Indepandent valuer Valuations for plant and machinery and building wars based on the esti d gross rep cost, depreci to reftact the residual service

pelantia! of the asaets taking account of the age. condition and obsolesconce. Land was valuad on the basis of fair market valus.

Plant and machinery lncluding equipmant held with Searts Pahkistan Limited. Breeze Phammaceutics! Limited and Maple Phammaceutical {Privale) Limited {toll manulacturers). are a3 follows:

Cost al:\sn 2,272
Net book valus 5,638 1,068
For the six
For the year months period
anded sndod

The depreclation charge for ine pariod  year has bean aliocated as follows: June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
Cost of sales - nota 26 1,272,297 529 895
Selling and distribution axpenses - note 27 13,821 2,837
Admint lon and genaral axp - note 28 48,144 28.708
1,334,462 558 528

Depreciation charge is inclusive of the incremenita! depreciation due {0 revaluation.
As at June 30, As at June 30,

Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of specific classes of operating property. plant and equipment would have amountsd lo: 014 2013

Nat book vatus

Freshold land 138,741 42,805

Buikdings 1,218,920 608,318

Flani and machinery 2,394,083 8.017,549
9.7521754 8,868 472

e
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Amounts in Rs "000

As at June As at June

30, 2014 30, 2013
3.7  Capital work-in-progress comprises of:

Civil works and buildings 270,916 280,758

Plant and machinery 553,481 1,970,677

Miscellaneous equipment 44,606 235219

Advances to suppliers / contractors 19,013 14,188

Designing, consultancy and engineering fes 11,940 69,365

859,966 2,580,208
B

This includes interest charged during the pericd ended June 20, 2013 in respect of long-term loan obtained for coal fired boiler project amounting to Rs 138
millien which has been transferred to operating property, plant and equipment during the year.

3.7.1  The following is the movement in capital work-In-progress during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year / period 2,580,208 2,008,731
Addition during the year / period 2,431,531 961,677

5,011,739 2,988,408
Transferred to property plant and equipment during the year / period 4,111,783 408,200
Balance st the end of the year / period 899,956 2,580,208

3.8 Details of operating property, plant and equipment disposals having net book value in excess of Rs 50,000 are as follows.

As at June 30, 2014
Mode of sale Cost Accumulated Net book Sale Particulars of buyers
depraciation value proceeds

Plant and machinery

Refractory, Panelmats and various Shahbaz and Company, Malk wal District

other assets Serap 600,470 485,458 105,012 1,301 Mand| Bahauddin

Rolling stock and vehiclas

Audi Auction 8.440 1739 4701 5,343 Mr. Azfar Abbas Ashary, Karachi
Bullding

Civii Work Lime Stone Storage Scrap 2,877 2,648 229 o[ 2baz and Company. Malk wal Disigict

Mand| 8ahauddin

As at June 30, 2013

Plant and machinery

Diesel Generator Set and various other Scrap 16,594 13,333 3,261 1,037  Shahbaz and Company, Malakwal district
ltems Mandi Bahauddin

Rolling stock and vehicles

Toyota Corolla, Toyola Altis and Fork Auction 2,600 2,092 508 2470 S Muhammad Shakeel, Mr. Zahid Qadr and
Lift trucks Mr. Asif Mahmood, Karachi

Bullding

Scrap tems Scrap 2,930 2,274 856 10 Anjum Wood Cralt, Khewra District Jhelum

dﬂ“"
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4 Intangible assets

Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value (NBV)
Addition / transfer (at cost}
Adjustments (at NBV) - note 4.1

Amortisation charge - note 4.2
Net bock value

Gross carrying amount

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Net book value

Amortisation rate % per annum

Net carrying value basis

Opening net book value
Additions (at cost)
Amortisation charge - note 4.2
Net book value

Gross carrying amount

Cost
Accumulated amonrtisation
Net book value

Amortisation rate % per annum

Amounts in Rs '000

As at June 30, 2014

Software Licenses Total
11,754 33,369 45,123
- 81,303 §1,303
40,900 3,692 14,592
{12,286) (34,471) (48,757)
10,368 53,893 64,261
172,187 188,546 360,733
(161,819) (134,653) {296,472)
10,368 53,893 64,261
20 20 to 50
As at June 30, 2013
19,115 21,877 40,992
- 25,042 25,042
(7,361) (13,550) {20,911)
11,754 33,369 45123
230,212 128,459 358,671
(218,458} {95,090) (313,548)
11,754 33,369 45,123
20 20t0 50

4.1 As explained in note 3.2.2, assels having net book value of Rs. 14.701 million and Rs. 0.109 million have been reclassified from

tangible assets and written off, respactively.

4.2  The amortisation charge for the year / period has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales - note 26
Selling and distribution expenses - note 27
Administration and general expenses - note 28

5 Long-term investment
Ungquoted at cost

Equity security available-for-safe
Arabian Sea Country Club Limited
250,000 ordinary shares (June 30, 2013: 250,000) of Rs 10 each
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For the year For the six months
ended June 30, period ended
2014 June 30, 2013
13,614 4,460
1,948 4,485
31,195 11,966
46,757 20,911
As at June 30, As at June 30,
2014 2013
2,500 2,500
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6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

8.1

8.2

Amounts in Rs '000

As at June 30, As at June 30,
2014 2013
Long-term loans
Considered good
Due from directors, executives and employees - note 6.1 266,525 202,071
Dus from diraectors, executives and employees
Motor car House Total Total
building
Due from directors and executives -note 6.2, 6.3 & 6.4 145,844 59,167 205,011 186,930
Less: Receivable within one year - note 11 27,450 26,517 53,967 47,148
118,384 32,650 151,044 139,782
Due from employees - note 6.3 128,345 86,023
Less: Receivable within one year - note 11 22,864 23,734
105,481 62,289
256,525 202,071
Outstanding for period:
- less than three years but over one year 163,005 113,643
- more than three years 93,520 88,428
256,525 202,071
Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans to directors and executives:
Balance at the beginning of the year / pericd 186,930 182.008
Dishursements during the year / period 123,988 45,528
Repayments during the year / period {108,907) (41,606)
Balance at the end of the year / period 205,011 186,930

Loans for purchase of motor cars and house building are repayable between two to ten years. These loans are interest free and
granted to the employees including executives of the Group in accordance with their terms of employment,

The maximum aggregate amount of loans due from the director and executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs

205.011 million {June 30, 2013: Rs 186,930 million).
Long-term deposits and prepayments

Deposits

Prepayments

Stores and spares

Stores - note B.1

Spares

Consurnables

Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete spares - note 8.2

The above amounts include stores and spares in transit of Rs. 17.506 million (June 30, 2013: Rs. 19.821 million)

Movement of provision for slow moving and obsolete spares is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year / period
Charge for the year / period - note 28

Write off during the year / period

Balance at the end of the year / period
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25,679 24,632
2,164 8,706
27,843 33,338
36,803 48,301
680,133 665,949
106,167 108,915
823,103 821,165
205,435 205,383
617,668 615,782
205,383 205,383
154 :
(102} :
205,435 205,383




Amounts in Rs "000

As at June 30, As at June 30,

2014 2013
9 Stock-in-trade
Raw and packing material {include in-transit Rs 791.850 million; 2013:
Rs 741.313 million) - note 8.3 2,372,699 2,106,390
Work-in-process 165,341 232,841
Finished goods (include in-transit Rs 137.44 million, 2013: Rs. 343.754 million) 2,166,884 2,348,788
4,704,924 4,688,019
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade - note 9.1
- Raw materials 8,771 15,461
- Finished goods 88,937 77,681
97,708 93,142
4,607,216 4,594,877
9.1  Movemant of provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade is as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year / period 93,142 88,428
Charge for the year / period - note 28 12,389 8,231
Reversal during the year / period (6,890) -
Write-off for the year / period (933) {3,517}
Balance at the end of the year / period 97,708 93,142

9.2  Stock amounting to Rs 28.801 miilion {2013: Rs 364.413 miflion) is measured at net realisable value and impairment has been
reversed by Rs 20.529 million {2013: Impairment charge of Rs 17.354 million) to arrive at its net realisable value.

9.3 Raw and packing materials held with the toll manufacturers are as follows:

Searle Pakistan Limited 349,019 305,766
Maple Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited 2,064 1,934
EPLA Laboratories (Private) Limited 10,031 46,258
Breeze Pharma (Private) Limited 20,811 33,831
NovaMed Pharmaceuticals (Private) Ltd 18,002 25,308
BioGenics Pakistan (Private} Limited 1,551 -
Seeds Sahiwal warehouses 21,777 1,597
423,255 414,694
10 Trade debts

Considered good
- Secured 161,166 288,092
- Unsecured 891,976 743,984
1,053,142 1,032,076
Considered doubtful 93,664 94,802
1,146,806 1,126,878

Less: Provision for:
- Doubtful debts - note 40.4 & 406 93,664 94 802
- Discounts payable on Sales 169,432 140,890
263,096 235,692
note 10.1 883,710 891,186

10.1 The above balances include amounts due from the following associated undertakings:
Yunus Textile Mills Limited 26,397 17.496
Lucky Textile Mills Limited 1,162 10.657
Lucky Knits (Private) Limited 3,340 730
30,899 28,883
AR
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Amounts in Rs ‘000

As at Juna 30, As at June 30,

2014 2013
11 l.oans and advances
Considered good
Loans due from;
Directors and executives - note 6.1 53,967 47,148
Employees - note 6.1 22,864 23,734
76,831 70,882
Advances to:

Directors and executives - note 11.1 14,538 7.573
Employees 219 199
Contractors and suppliers 95,921 76,572
Others 5,491 5414
116,169 89,758
193,000 160,640
Considered doubtful 7,292 7,282
200,292 167,932
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances - note 40.4 & 40.6 7,292 7.292
193,000 160,640

11.1  The maximum aggregate amount of advances due from the directors and executives at the end of any month during the year was
Rs 3.221 million and Rs 14.333 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 2.585 million and Rs 10.922 million} respectively.

12  Trade deposits and short-term prepayments

Trade deposits 26,008 17,165
Shori-term prepayments 194,010 144,723
220,018 161.888

13 Other receivables

Conslidered good
Duties, sales tax and octroi refunds due 287,020 392,101
Commission receivable 22,612 21,784
Interest income receivable 8,214 10,231
Receivable from principal - note 13.2 1,068,427 710,600
Others 102,412 53,496
1,488,685 1,188,212
Considered doubtful 20,237 57,312
1,508,922 1,245,524
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables - note 13.3 20,237 57,312
note 13.4 4,488,685 1,188,212

13.4 The above amount includes Rs Nil (2013: Rs 23.36 million) on account of exchange gain / loss on forward exchange contracts.

13.2 This includes receivable amounting to Rs 1,019.8 million {June 30, 2013 Rs 710.6 million) from foreign vendor in relation to
margin support guarantee.

13.3 Movement of provision for doubtful receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year / period §7,312 57,312
Reversal during the year / period (37,075) -
Balance at the end of the year / period 20,237 57,312

14 Cash and bank balances

Cash at bank:
- Short-term deposits - note 14.1 103,000 102,000
- Current accounts 747,210 465,308
In hand:
- Cheques - 261,159
-Cash 7,094 7.676
858,204 836,143

141 Represent security deposils from customer that are placed with various banks with terms ranging from one week to one year. The
mark-up on these deposits ranges between 8.00%: to 9.00% (June 30, 2013: 8.50% to 11.50%) and these term deposits are
readily encashable without any penalty. w‘n

¢
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Amounts in Rs ‘000
15 {ssued, subscribed and paid-up capital

As at June As at June 30, As at June 30, As at June 30,
30, 2014 2013 2014 2013
(Numbers)

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
83,734,062 83,734,062 in cash 837,341 837,341

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued as
fully paid for consideration other than
cash under scheme of arrangement
211,925 211,925 for amalgamation - (note 15.1} 2,11¢ 2119

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued as
16,788 16,786 fully paid bonus shares 168 168

Ordinary shares issued pursuant to the previous
scheme as fully paid for consideration of
8,396,277 8,396,277 investment in associate (note 15.2) 83,963 83,963

92,359,050 92,359,050 923,591 923,591

15.4 The process for amalgamation of three companies namely Paintex Limited, 1C| Pakistan Manufacturers Limited and Imperial
Chemical Industries Limited resulted in a new company as ICI| Pakistan Limited on April 1, 1987.

15.2 With effect from OQctober 1, 2000 the Pure Terephthalic Acid (PTA} Business of the Company was demerged under a
scheme of arrangement dated Dacember 12, 2000 approved by the shareholders and sanctioned by the High Court of Sindh.

15.3 On December 28, 2012, Lucky Holdings Limited acquired from 1CI Omicron B.V. its entire shareholding of 70,019,459 shares
in ICl Pakistan Limited, besides acquiring 111,698 additional shares by way of public offer made by it to all the shareholders
of the Company in pursuance of the provisions of the Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares & Take-
overs), Ordinance, 2002 and the Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares & Take-overs) Regulations,
2008. Thus, Lucky Holdings Limited became the holding company, and Lucky Cement Limited became the uitimate holding
company of ICI Pakistan Limited with effect from December 28, 2012 Along with Lucky Holdings Limited, two other
companies of the Yunus Brothers Group namely, Gadoon Textile Mills Limited and Lucky Textile Mills Limited also
paricipated in the public offer thereby acquiring 5,980,917 shares and 5,077,180 shares respectively. As at the balance
sheet date, Lucky Cement Limited together with the group companies held 87.33% (June 30, 2013: 87.79%) shareholding.

16 Capital reserves
Share premium - note 16.1 309,057 309,057
Capital receipts - note 18.2 586 586

309,643 309,643

16.1  Share premium includes the premium amounting to Rs 0.902 million received on shares issued for the Company's Polyester
Plant installation in 1980 and share premium of Rs 464.357 million representing the difference between nominal value of Rs
10 per share of 12,618,391 ordinary shares issued by the Company and the market value of Rs 590.541 million of these
shares corresponding to 25% holding acquired in Lotte Pakistan PTA Limited, an ex-associate, at the date of acquisition i.e.
November 2, 2001 and the number of shares that have been issued were determined in accordance with the previous
scheme in the ratio between market value of the shares of two companies based on the mean of the middle market quotation
of the Karachi Stock Exchange over the ten trading days between October 22, 2001 to November 2, 2001,

With effect from July 1, 2011, the capital reserves were split between the Company and Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited based

on 66.54:33.46 ratio which was disclosed in the audited special purpose financial statements for the six months pericd ended
June 30, 2011.

16.2 Capilal receipts represent the amount received from various ICI plc group companies overseas for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment. The remitling companies have no claim to their repayments.

17 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and eguipment

Balance at the beginning of the year / period 843,037 884,867
Adjustrnent due to change in tax rate - note 20.1 21,042
Transferred to unappropriated profit

in respect of incremental depreciation during the

year / period - net of deferred {ax {79,562) (41,830)
Balance at the end of the year / period 784,517 843,037

at
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Amgcunts In Rs '000

Asat June  AsatJune
30, 2014 30,2013
Restatad
Provisions for non-managemant stall gratulty 78,081 760,917
Staff retirement benefits
The amount recogrised in the profit and loss dccount against defined benefit scheme for the year / pariod is as follows:
2014 2013
Fundad Unfunded Funded Unfundad
Penslon Gratuity Total Pension Gratuity Total Restated
The amounts recognised in the profit and joss account
galnst defined benaflt sch are as follows:
Current service cost 17,163 32,702 49,355 3,291 11,998 20,760 32,758 1368
Interest cost 102,088 64,286 157,182 8,118 63,671 34,7684 98,625 3,904
Expacted return on plan assats {127,187) {37,245) {184,412} - (64,311) (18,408) {B2,717) -
Past sorvica cosl — 10,415 10,115 {19,118) -
Net {revarsal) / charge for the year / period 118 58,858 52.740 1,284 11,558 37.118 48,678 5272
Other comprehensive income:
Loss / (Gain) on obligation T.112 21,674 20,6868 85,677 {95,577) (69,985) {194,572) 7.917
(Gain) on plan assets {75,848) {11,632} 187,277} - 85,884 30.553 128,437 -
Nel {gain) / loss [":ﬂll l'NZ EES!) EIGTI {191,461} [1&548) |321 009' 7.517
Movement In the net assets / {llabllity) recognised
in the balance sheet are as follows:
Opening balanca 225,777 {190,112) 35,665 (79,917} (29,128) (302,088) {331,224) {72,388)
Net raversal / (charge) - note 18.1.4 7118 {59,858) (62,740) {1.284) {11,558} {37.118} {4B,676) {5.272}
Other comprehensive income 68,53 (8,942) 58,691 (E,677) 191,481 128,548 321,009 {7.517)
Contributions f paymants during the year / perlod - 83,178 83,178 8,807 75,000 18,556 94,558 5258
Closing batance 301,428 [196,734) 104,694 {78,081) ¢ 225777 180,112} 358865 (79.917) *
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
Fair vaiue of plan assets - note 18.1.5 1,274,962 78,571 1,864,533 - 1,292,746 82228 1,655,974
Prasent value of defined benefit obligation - note 18.1 4 (973,534} {576,305} {1,549.838) {78,081) 1,067,969 552 340 1,620,309 78,917
Surplus / {deficit} 301,428 {196,734) 104,694 {78,081} * 225777 {180,112) 38 665 (79817 *
The recognized asset / Hability of fundad gratuity is natted off against recognized ssset / iabilily of funded pension and recorded accordingly
Movement In the presant value of defined benaflt obligation:
Opening balance 1,067,988 552,340 1,620,309 79,817 1,194.818 846,508 1841124 72388
Current servica cost 17,153 32,102 49,855 32 11,898 20,760 32768 1,368
inlerast cost 102,898 54,288 157,182 8,118 83871 34,764 968,835 3,904
Benefits pale (221,596) (84,712) {316,300) (8,807) (106,941) (50,695) {157,836) (5.258)
Actuariat loss / (gain) 7112 21,574 28,688 5,877 (85.577) (96,885) (194,572 7517
Past service cost - 10,116 10,115 {10,115} - . - .
Closing balance 973,534 578,505 1,548,839 78,081 1,067,680 552,340 1,620,309 79,817
Movement [n the falr valus of plan assets:
Opening balance 1,293,748 362,228 1,656,974 - 1,165,462 344,408 1,508,900 -
Expecied raturn 127,167 37,245 184,442 - 84311 18,408 82,717 -
Contributions - 83,178 83,178 . 75,000 10.556 94,558 -
Benefits paid (221,598) {94,712} [318,308) - {106,941) (50,695) {157,838) 5
Atiuanial gain 75,845 11,632 87,277 . £5.884 30,553 128,437 -
Closing balance - note 18.1.7 1,274,962 379,571 1,854,533 - 1,203 748 282 228 1,655 674 -
* The unfunded Inchaded tn the above table Includes Rs 0.239 million {Juna 30, 2013 Rs 0.239 milion) pertaining ta the Subsidiary
Historical Information *¢ | June 30 | December 31 |
2004 | 2043 | 22 | 20m1 | 2048 |
Prasent value of defined bensfit obligalicn 1,627,920 1,700,228 2,284,010 2,237,281 2,480,048
Fair value of plan assets (1,654,633 (1655874} (1,509,900) __(1.581,574) {1,771,477)
{Surplus) { deficit 26,813 44..2_52 754,110 755 68T 711,669
** Prior yaar figures are Inclushve of staff ratirement benafits of Paints businass (from 2049 10 2010).
Major categories / composition of plan assets are as follows:
2014 T 2013 ]
Debl instrumenta 80.7T7% 89%
Equity at market valug 28.70% 28%
Cash 2.63% 3%
Falr valua of plan assst
Investment Pensien Gralu | _Pension || Geatuity |
As at June 30, 2014 _AsatJuns 30,2013 |
Mational savirgs deposits 181,164 - 528,012 82,250
Governmant bonds 687,998 283,448 336,014 172,385
Corporate boris . 6,936 6431 B.137
Shares 406,835 87,586 392,450 70,317
Cash 19,267 21,603 __ 29139
Total 1,274,962 379,671 1,263,748 362.228

Mortality of acliva amployees and perdionsrs Is represented by the LIC (96-88) tabla. The table has been rated down thras years for mortality of femate pensioners and widows.

Actusl retum on plan assels during 2014 was Rs 251.68% mifiprs (2013. Rs 208.154 milion). L Iﬂ



18.1.8  Thae principal actuarial assumptions at the reperting date were as (ollows:

L2014 | 2013 |
Discound rate 12.75% 10.75%
Future salary increasss - Management 10.50% 875%
Future salary increasas - Non - Management 3.00% 6.00%
Future pension increases 7.50% B8.00%

18.1.8 Impaci of changes in ptions on defined benefil sch Is as follows:

Assumptlon Increase Decrease I
Discount ratg 8s,2e7) 85.249
Salary incroase 82,203 (56,918}
Pension increase 35272 (N,726)

18.1.10 The Group contributed Rs 62.543 million (June 30, 2013; Rs 31 347 miion) and Rs 45,349 millon (June 30, 2013 Rs 21,248 milien) to the provident fund and the defined contribution
suparannuation fund respectively during the year,

As at June || As ot Juns
30, 2014 30, 2013
Unaudited) | | (Unaudited)

18.2 Provident fund

Size of tha fund 1,260,508 1,234,584
Cost of investments mads 1,427,747 1,082,506
Petcentage of invesiments made 8% 86%
Fair valus of investments

1,182,093 1,196,650
18.2.1  Break-up of Investments of provident fund

Break-up of investmeants In terms of smount and percentaga of the size of the provident fund are as folows:

As at Juns 30, 2014 As al June 20, 2013
(Unaudited) {Unaudited)
% of % of
Investment Investmants
On falr value Investments | © o op | {investments | e
the fund | fund
Pakistan investmoent Bonds 854,998 72% 518,722 44%
Treasury Bl 49,604 4% 170,814 14%
Roegular income Certificates - % 222,300 18%
Mutual Funds 81,682 % 78,887 8%
Shares 198,142 16% 185,654 16%
Tarm Finance Certificates

9,868 1% 12,263 1%
L9209, . 100% 1106020, .. 100K

Investments out of provident fund have been made In accordance with the provisions of tha section 227 of the Companies Crdinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

AsatJune  AsalJuns
30, 2014 30, 2012

19 Long-term loans

2,314,805 1,887.028

194 From banking companies / financial institutions:
- Faysal Bank Limited 343,691 3350
- Habib Bank Limited 543,435 543,435

u?,nzs B87 026
The Group has obtained long-term finance fecilly (LTFF) for imporiad and lecally manufactured plant and machinery from Faysal Bank Limited of Re 343.581 million (limit: Rs 500 million)
and Habib Bank Limited of Rs 543 425 milion (Emit: Rs 1,000 milion) for & period of 7 yaars (including 2 year grace period), with the principal payabie on semi annual basls. The mark-up s
chargeable at flxed rate ranging from B.85% to 9.85% payabla on quarterly basis, These faciilies are secured against first pari passu hypothecation charge on the property. planl and
equipment (PPE) of the Group's Soda Ash Business, located al Khewra. Tha loens have been refinanced by the State Bank of Pakistan under long term finance facility {LTFF} for export
orianted projects.

18.2 Islamle term finance

From banking companias / financlal Institutiona:
-Standard Chartered Bank {(Pakistan) Limited 800,000

1,000,000
-Less: Current portion of long-term finance 400,000

400,000 1,000,000
The Group has obiained long-term financa for Rs 1,000 milion in Juna 2013 from Standard Charterad Bank {Pakisian) Limited under Islamic Diminishing Musharakeh upto a fimit of Rs
1,000 million for & pariod of 3 years (including & month graca period). Repayments of Rs 200 milion were made curing the curent year The rental paymant |s charged at relevant KIBOR

plus 0.25% p.a. payable on semi annual basis. This facility s inilially secured by a ranking charge to be subsaguently replaced by a first pari passu hypothecation charge on the prasent and
future fixed assels of the Group's Polyaster Business localed al Sheikhupura.

-Magzan Bank Limitad 500,000 -
-Less: Curren portion of Long-Term Finance 222,222 5
Frafii) .

During the year the Group has cbialned fong-term finance for R 500 millien from Meezan Bank Limited under |stamic Diminishing Mushzrakah upto a limit of Rs 500 million for a period of 3
years {including 8 months grace period). The rantal paymant is charged at relevant KIBOR pius 0.25% p.a. payable on a quarterly basis. This faciity I Initladly secured by a ranking charge ta
ba subsequently replaced by a first pari passu hypothecation charga on the prasent and future plant, machinery and equipment of tha Group's Soda Ash Business localed ot Khewra.

-Allied Bank Limited 1,800,000 -
-Leoss: Currant portion of jong-term loan 249,999 -
750,001 -

During the yser the Group has obtained long-term loan for Rs 1,000 million from Allied Bank Limited under long-term loan uplo a limit of Rs 1,000 million for & period of 4 years {including 1
year grace perod). The rental payment is charged at relevant KIBOR plus 0.25% p.o. payabla on a quanisry bagis. This tacility is secured by o first parl passu hypothacation charge on the
presant and futura plant, machinery and equipment of the Group's Seda Ash Busingss lecated at Khewra. wyi

¢
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Amounts In Rs '000

As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2013
Opening | Reversal/ Closing Opening Reversal Closing
{Charge)
Deferred tax {liabillty) / asset - net
Deductible temporary differences
Provisions for retirement benefits,
doubiful debts and others {301,666} 42,298 {(259,368) (330,078) 28410 {301,666)
Retirement funds provision routed through other
comprehensive income (93,508) 28,276 {65,232) {211,383) 117,885 {93,508)
Taxable temporary differences
Proparty, plant and equipment - note 20.1 4,496,285 (77,967) 1,418,318 1,421,819 74,466 1,486,285
1,101,111 {7,393) 1,093,718 880,350 220.781 1,101,111

Reversal during the year includes Rs 21.042 million (June 30, 2013 Rs Nil} adjusted in surpius on revaluation of property, plant and eguipment on account of
change in tax rate.

As at June  As at June 30,

30, 2014 2013

Trade and other payables Restated
Trade creditors - note 21.1 1,387,666 651,021
Bills payable 2,338,350 2,113,808
Excise and custom duties 4,486 4,811
Mark-up accrued on short-term financing 58,454 28,485
Accrued interast on expansion project - note 21.2 3,182 38,733
Accrued expenses 975,458 836,188
Technical service fee / royalty - note 21.3 23,686 B80
Workers' profit participation fund - note 21.4 114,557 72,447
Workers' welfara fund 51,539 54,110
Distributors' security deposits - payable on termination of distributorship - note 21.5 106,142 118,888
Contractors' eamest / retention money 9,809 9,550
Running account with customers - note 21.6 223,874 118,086
Unclaimed dividends 48,692 45,982
Payable for capital expenditure 329,509 253,710
Provision for compensated absences - note 21.7 31,248 31,249
Others 147,655 211,892

5,854,278 4,589,420

This amount Includes Rs Nil {Juns 30, 2013: Rs 1.17 mifiion} on account of exchange gain / loss on forward exchange contracts.

This lability pertains to financing obtained for coal fired boller project. Interest charged on the finance facilities is capitalised as part of plant and machinery

This amount includes Rs 23.008 million (June 30, 2013: Rs Nii) on account of royalty payable to Lucky Holdings Limited.

Workers' profit participation fund

Balance at the beginning of the year / pericd 72,447 81,887
Allocation for the year / pericd - note 29 111,435 57,966
183,882 138,853
Interest on funds utilised in the Group's
businesses at 41.25 % (June 30, 2013: 41.25%) per annum - note 30 3,400 2,504
Less:
- Payment to the Fund 72,725 70,000
Balance at the end of the year / period 114,557 72.447

Interest on security deposits from certain distributors is payable at 8.8 % (June 30, 2013: 11.2 %) per annum as specified in the respective agreements.

Included hereln are amounis due to the following associated undertakings (related party)

Gadoon Textile Milis 27,910 2,691

Fazal Textile Mills 764 249

Yunus Textile Mils Limited 197 -
28,871 3,140

This figure is based on actuarial valuation and estimation.

Short-term borrowings and running finance - note 22.1, 22.2,22.3 & 22.4 437,368 2,854,548

Short-term borrowings and running finance facility from various banks aggregated to Rs 4,946 million {June 30, 2013 Rs 4,740 million) and carry mark-up
during the year of KIBOR + 0.20% to 1.00% per annum with an average mark-up rate of relevant KIBOR + 0.20% as at June 30, 2014 on utilized limits
{June 30, 2013: relavant KIBOR + 0.40% lo 0.75% per annum with an average mark-up rate of relevant KIBOR + 0.20% on utilized limits). The facilities are
secured by hypothecation charge over the present and future stock-in-trade and book debts of the Groupd ubﬂ
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Amounts in Rs '000
As at June As at June 30,
30, 2014 2013

Short-term borrowings - secured X 2.126.000

There are no short term borrowings utilized as at balance sheet date (June 2013: Rs. 2,126 million, relevant KIBOR + 0.20 + 0. 50%)

Forelgn currency loan agalnst import flnance 267,368

The above foreign cumency lean carry mark up at relavant LIBOR + bank's spread which is decded at the time of disbursemant (June 30, 2013 NIL)

Export refinance 170,000 130,000

The Group has export refinance facility of upto Rs. 200 miliion (June 30, 2013 Rs. 200 million) available from Faysal Bank Limited as al Jung 30, 2014 out of
which Rs 170 million was ulilized {(June 30, 2013: Rs 130 million). The above export refinance facility Is secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge

The export refinance facility carries mark-up at State Bank of Pakistan rale (currently B.40%) + 0. 25% per annum {June 30, 2013: SBP rate 8.4% + 0.25%
per annum).

Short-term running finance - securad

- 398,548
Contingencles and commitments
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debis are as follows:
Local bodies - note 23.1.1 36,616 30,448
Others 49,972 28,288
86,588 58.734

The Group was served notice by Punjab Employees Social Security Instilulion’s Local office Shahdara, dated Nov 24, 1887 on Polyester Plant for payment
Rs 11.86 m on account of Socia! Security Contribution on basis of assessment made by the PESSI for the pericd 1996 and 1887, on behalf of contractors’
workers (M's Descon Engineering Limited) engaged for Expansion Project. The Group challenged the notice and filed an appeal with Vice Commissioner
Social Security Institution and alsc filed petition In High Court Lahore on July 20, 2012, along with stay application. the court granted stay order on July 25
2012. The outcome of the case cannot be determined yet.

A demand for additional electricity duty amounting {o Rs 17.741 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 17.711 million) has been raised by the electric Inspector to the
Subsidiary for the period from March 2004 to June 2007. The matter along with other legal options are currently being explored by the Group. No provision
has been made for the demand as the Group considers that this additional duty is not payable.

Also refer note 43 to these financial statements for income tax contingencies.

Guarantee issued by the Group of Rs Nil {June 30, 2013: Rs 133 million) to a bank on behall of its subsldiary IC| Pakistan PowerGen Limited for availing
funded facility

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure {including coal fired boller project of the Soda Ash business and coal fired steam lurbine project of the
Polyester business) amounted to Rs 1,172.736 million (June 30, 2013; Rs 5687.309 millian).

During the year the Group committed an equity investment of Rs. 880 million in the Morinaga Business, io be jointly operated by ICI Pakistan and Unibrands
(Pvi) Ltd under a newly formed company namely NutriCo Pakistan (Pvi.) Limited through signing of shareholders and share subscriplion agreements with
Unibrands. This joint venture entalls a total equity investmient of Rs. 960 million by the Group to acquire 40% equity in NutriCo In up lo three tranches.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group has paid Rs. 360 million In this respect.

Commitments for rentals under operating lease / ljarah contracls in respect of vehicles amounting to Rs 155.810 million {June 30, 2013: Rs 135.268 million)
are as follows:

Year
204 - 55,030
2015 62,223 43,872
2016 49,215 26,783
2017 34,969 9,581
2018 9,203 .
155,610 135,266
Payable not later than one year 62,223 55,030
Payable later than one year but not later than five years 93,387 80,236
155,610 135,266

Cutstanding foreign exchange contracls as at June 30, 2014 entered into by the Group amounted to Rs Nil {June 30, 2013: Rs 1,188.117 million)gp‘uﬁ
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Opavating segment Mty Amaures in Rs '#50
Polyster Soda Ash Uity Sciances Chemicals Others « PowerOmn Graup Qv
Fortayesy OTTew For the year Formesa g g yaar Fortass  po e TETER o yeny  fTOE [r— For s o
el p-::u ended wced penod ercked ondad anded anded period snded e anded e iy
Juneda ot TORLTOY edo pne TN T wman e SRy duednzond (TEROITND o 2o1s ERCIC || s e 30, 7003
Salas
Alghamstan - - TR 4864 - () Ly 1528 - 10,108 1281
inda . - AT 400 181,003 i - - - » . . 407500 10003
Ursed Arsb Emrates 3 5 3 5 o - 80,410 7,861 . B 50,410 7,080
- - 8333 - - ] - - . - - - A0 |
- am 40d.240 ThS 847 - st [+h, ] [ X - B 204,383
Intot-aagment . - - - - - L1124 evel 1,088,140 ELERL] 107,07 352,008
Lacal nahan 8701478 10427848 4882713 T804, 004 3381833 AT 2,123.88% : - A3 078,014 15 B0 808
15.047,401 [ X4 kak] 10,053,443 4,089,382 T804 504 3384334 LU 2,143,443 1,084,140 543,101 4,711,081 20,852.092
Commsion | Toll rcome - - - - - - 1,803 3.881 Q = 41,808 34,891
Tumover 10 847.433 §.700,712 4,888 382 T804 5 3.384.34 4409, 2,180.334 t, 140 543101 AT 20.888.843
Baien tan 5.0 120,728 84351 40974 A1) ATHH0 2150 144,200 480 tis0,01 1072 802
Commuaion and thecourts to
darbuton and suEmen 43008 12004 137 843 BE0.TEY 4342M piAL) 132.430 o - 30 A2t 258
420,080 pr2)-red 134718 783,158 900,764 A3 450 s LX3) 185,200 e 4,070,302 1893040
Nt ssies, commisson A tof Incoms 1234230 458 G0 [L1LR]] 4088 24 100,09 2050874 103,458 1mam 912940 457,540 w1637 18,793,003
Cost of saies - note 20 1,084 088 447,026 5,822,300 3204259 4792339 2,148 43t 3,904,244 1473370 JoaT14 9064 34,364 287 15853048
Groas profit {124.178) 14,004 pEALE LR 4 1411,400 004,443 Al 354,703 14424 76,508 4Te7.807 21857
Beling 0nd daTtticn Sxpanaes - nots Z7 253,230 e 2M.18 81,387 124,908 20500 110,18 Ma.me - : 1.630.254 323
Admnairation and genersl 1apanses - note 28 3,130 124970 w4 107,888 1,18 120211 38 838 " L-ra] A, 407 381,835
Operating resuit (T91,858) 138931 1,848 847 JITTH 704,880 7 ats 348 088 204 048 143,213 7o 285 1371148 1240631
Bagmeni azsats - note 244 1843208 Tnaaes 14,827,493 12.808 837 0,338,488 4,831,688 LK 38 2398,548 M2 Ad0084 W.911.032 10,334 727
Unatiocated assets 1471,734 1570 588
—__myaae _ ez
Segment Qnbiities - note 1.5 11,314,358 LR 4L 3177.587 285504 1,080,342 1024907 200 847 [SRE) .00 THs 484 0.004 203
Unallocated Rablites 104017 Az In
T toesaTy 03305
Intor of teip haes Beert T ot
& L.
nole L& 42 1,00 230,381 TEL40) 254,573 .0 11,100 .o 853 42479 2748 131218 500439
Capital anpanditure 1627533 AQ7 5 02,033 550 901 43,008 8Ny i 19871 1 11.573 283050 1008718
Intar-segment pricing
Trarmachons mmong e busness segments sve recorded et srm's kngth prices Using sdmessible yaligtion mathods.
‘There ware no mapor customaer of the Group which formed part of 10 % ot more of e Group's teverue.
For the s
Fortha year | " "
nded enced
e 30,2014 || sme 30,2013
RAeconcillations of reportable segment reverues, cast of sake, assat and babllites
Turnaver
Tekal tumcver for reparabie sepments - note 24 LTI 20088 543
Ebmuinancn of nter-segment lumaver - note 24 (3.06T} (9.785)
Ebrwnshon of inter -augenent umcrver from the submiciery {1,003,140) 542,181
Totsl tntvet K] 20133 477
CoM of ke
Total cost of s.eles for reportable sspments - nats 29 I T 10,038,048
of Intet-4agn nots 208 {5387} (9.70%)
Ebmination of ear-segment purchatss from the subsidary {1.080.140) 442,181}
Total cost of sales 33,300,470 — 18,505 080
Avsats
Totel sassts for raporiatie sagments 20912832 19354727
Tanwhon recoversbie 178074 1,474,088
Bank depoaity - nots 14 103,000 102.000
Long-letm investments « nots 3. 2.100 2,500
Tota ssasts T _memny
Labiittas

Total Sabites for reponable segments
Short-lerm o -note 72.1. 3228223
Long-lerm loan - nots 1§

nnte 21
Unclamesd dridends - nata 21
Total Liabdoss.
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Cosl of sales

Raw and packing

materials conumed

Oparary wtock.

Puchases
Intar-aagmant
Omts

Clasing stock - fote B

Raw i pachagng msterial tonsumed
Selanes, wages nd beneltis - ncie 20.1
Stoves and spares consumed

Corversion fes pat i contract manufachrsmn.

oe-now 35842
Wrts-ofts -note 3224 4.1
Excle

uty
Tectrcal tess
Reyaity
Canar sl oxDnes - vote 20.2
Opening 1ack of wark -process.
Closng stock of work-n-process - hots §
Cost of goods marsdachured
Qpaning stock of frished poods
Firmbad goods purchased
Cloang stick of Arsshed gaods - note §
Prorvibite fit slerer moving & cbaclets
Hock-in-rade - noty 28

Staft retiremont bermitts

Salansn, wages and bensiits Include R 11 543 millon {June 30, 2013: Rs 21 883 maon| in fetpect of St retrement benefes.

Barvica charpes from the subsiolary

The nchudes smaunt Re 1 740 milon (June 30, 2013: Re 0870 milen}

Beliing and ditribution expenses

g

Lightng. heating st coolng

Deprociation and amorbashon charge ~nols 35 L 42
Wrsotte-note 1225 4.1
Cutward resght and handing

Tewesling 51300008

Posiage, telsgram, telephons and talex

Foyaity

Ceneral mpenist

St ratwement bemitis

Ameauran in Rs 0
Folyertat Fo0a A Un $cncer Chamicals Tiwes - PowerGon Greve [
Fartayesr  TOTEMT o vear PO e FOTREE e PO ronmyu- o the a8 P N rariaes |
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o 1ees 0,102 3002 388388 107,90 18497 1m0 Bm 200097 2480364
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{era.010) ;m :u; (S12107) _ e3102) (838.348) (4820843 aTaexy _ (zavssy 480 sy L3e3928) _ onacow
2. 2R3N 77800 AT 400,730 177,640 84T [Ty 120,53 MEIEAS  I0.T2IETH
e m‘m Sab74T 2018 1 w0 usmm 17320 s nan 106987 200t
mzs @ns 108,418 s ] 2 191 1718 Ten nsn 121072
2 : z 5 a0 138433 wn X > pryvr 141,308
1990218 1002818 T 1210780 = 4850 ase 125% sty 2amam
m 0 100 4 0 . asin a0 10 s 0312
20en 1280 e 18970 . 5 23 1308 s e T
" 1057 " 3 " - 211 0 81 10003 228
£00,637 17,028 121703 282,007 2 o7 11,400 4241 7 1108941 83403
110 . 20,108 s > = g [ . s )
L . . . 5 5 3 1 'E:") 032 47
2 . . 5 o 807 1384 . ) aan 1384
4 B o o 5 A 3 B 1429 o
14 88,347 108,181 ar.482 1,187 1700 0540 1203 w Mo 142520
170518 Tagnr < : e 20 1270 : = B 147.983
143,343 170,818 . 5 (39478 (8304 2280y 3 A peLM)  @azedy
TN 0.130.500 T8 Tai 064 YAt 1740 THTY 01T THAIE  1A.249.38
W00 100070 203810 1502840 wan meme . L A 2150M
130,304 2578 5 iy 297703 1.008,1 1,203,808 831984 5 83 LML anizma
WA 10437243 Teas 3In0R WORAN  ZMIEZE . STLeET 1884613 T 0634 TAAT0] 1003730
(96308 (904304 124,303 aeIE  (1291.89) (702.580) 1390.800)  (aod.e70} 3 - ROILMT Qanen
1,613 12,308 o 5 14.87) . 239w 0231
T mEmin _ae _we _SEE __fnaw _gHeet [ il _oiee __feju __weew Wy _igass
the C. y for costaan Bervcy charges n with the L - winch heve besrt from S totl.
Admaunts n A o8
Potyester Soda Ash Lite Sclences Chemicals Ottets - PowsiGen Qroup Qo
For te yuar For tha ui Fotthe ysat For the am For the yesr Fot e s lenynf Fnrhﬁ “'“”.' For the 8o P [————
aedn2on JEOSS a0 20u PROURTRS mmedzme MO iy~ mm! e 30,2004 Jrobgteeitl I TUC T | P~z W
az010 1837 1800 104,418 M 810 . . W 182,081
168 101 1082 1378 Tan s . 5 7204 3427
1,100 153 @ 2 ET 1 . 5 10238 sa.20n
00 182 1579 e 1328 813 L 5 12576 w311
. 5 a7 5000 2284 1504 L . 112 1200
107 5 00 1047 s 1453 2 . 15,897 1349
= ¥ s 4500 5288 2151 d 5 1 ran
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soM 1,350 10,530 0200 “wm 2307 . - 1180 #4.150
12%0 338 1% am 408 1101 . 5 143,308 58.200
™ 1.1M Yt 0050 34z a1 5 5 78 12458
030 I
14t 19,988 14,010 433 8isH nau 281 - : 07,148 340
78,130 8,019 FITRIT] 51387 24,900 20,908 310,338 58075 z 5 630,354 5931

Salaney and Senaftis include Re 13778 mdkon {June 30, 2013. Re 14,096 millen] in reapact of sl rewremant bensits.

and g "
For maax
monthe.
pennd ended
Ard 30,2013 e 30, 2014 dune 30, 7012
Sateres bnd benetts + note 28.1 41,4801 .00 $4.173 111,048 38775 s 20240 - .
RAepaars and manisnancs 2 14t0 1,008 1,008 A . o
Adverbung and publcry sxp st 1014 LIt e 1240 F=1} -
Rent. retes and inses 2038 2888 s (1] n2 = &
I 493 1987 2.2% a2 8 - -
Lightng, hasimg and cooing 2987 4908 2500 1,040 21 .
O and nredisal 13,330 23,003 a7 14,008 T.484 . o
Wiita-cffa -note 3224 4.1 - 11 43 - -
Proveaon for doubthd debts - wade - note 4048 - - . . . e -
Provasion for slow meving and soaolete
stockdn-trade - nots 9.1 - 1,083 . 283 = 4587 g .
Proveion e siow maving spares - ncte 8 2 - - L2 2 - - . -
Traveling axpenass T.872 21203 R Ja02 4,100 2202 - -
Postage, telagram, telephiris ihd thlex aan 160 EAL 1187 1,707 ar - o
Corarnl srpanast » note 78.2 S Ak 34,473 48247 17477 14,148 10,360 " &N
309,150 174 978 84193 8832 120,34 54638 [T [l

Sttt reternent bansiits

Balaris and benebis include Re 12.704 milon {June 39, 2013 Ru 19 360 milon) in tespect of S8t re sment Danefm.

Borvice Charpes from subsidiary

“Tres inchucias Ry O 240 milon {June 30, 2013: Re 0.120 mdlon) charged by the Company for cartsn admimistve senace charges in
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Other charges

Auditors’ remuneration - note 29.1
Donations - note 29.2

Workers' profit paricipation fund - note 21.4
Workers' welfare fund

Loss on disposal of propery, plant and equipment
Auditors' remunaration
Statulory audit fee

Half yearly review and other certifications
Out of pocket expenses

Amounts in Rs '000

For the six
For;::aydaar months period
ended June 30,
June 30, 2014 2013

3,937 2,739
17,452 7,450
111,435 57,966
43,140 22,395

15,069 -
181,033 90,550
2,300 2,250

850 -
687 489
3,937 2,739

Represent provision in respect of donation to ICI Pakistan Foundation (Head office, Karachi}. Mr. Asif Jooma, Director of the Group, Mr.
Suhail Aslam Khan, Mr. Asif Malik, Ms. Saima Kamita Khan and Ms. Fathema Zuberi, Executives of the Company are amongst the
Trustees of the Foundation. No amount has been pald during the curent year and correspending period.

Finance costs

Mark-up on short-term financing

Interest on workers' profit participation fund - note 21.4
Discounting charges on receivables

Exchange losses

Guarantee fee and others

Other Income

Income from financial assets
Profit on shori-term and call deposits
Income from non-financlal assets

Scrap sales

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Provisions and accruals no longer required written back
Exchange gain

Sundries

327,724 137,370
3,400 2,504
46,292 20917
4,775 24,914
5,833 1,998
388,024 187,793
368 -
67,994 22,563
588 363
138,552 92,214
104,774 .
8,100 10,460
321,776 125,600
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Taxation

Current
Prior
Deferred

Tax raconclifation
Profit bafore tax

Tax @ 34% (2013: 35%:)

Tax impact on profit of the subsidiary - nole 32.2

Effect of prior year charge

Tax impact due to change of FTR ratio

Effect of credit under section 658

Effect of change in tax rate on beginning deferred tax balance
Tax effect of items not deductible for tax purposes

Others

Average effactlve tax rate

Amounts In Rs ‘000

For the year For the six
ended manths period
June 30, 2014  ended June 30,
2013
311,133 271,338
(102,548) (35.887)
70,163 102,872
note 32.1 278,748 338,321
2,113,865 1,097,188
718,714 384,016
(45,188) (24.885)
{102,548) {35,887)
89,034 8,230
{316,690) -
{62,510) .
7,218 2,608
(9,344) 4,239
278,748 338,321
13% 31%

The minimum turnover tax on subsidiary has been waived under Clause 11A of Part IV of second schedule of the income Tax
Ordinance 2001 and accordingly, the iIncome of the Subsidiary Is exempt under the provision of Income Tax Ordinance 2001,

Basic and diiuted earnings per share {EPS)

Profit after taxation for the year / period

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year / period

Basic and diluted earnings per share {(EPS)

1,835,117

758,867

Number of shares

92,359,050

92,359,050

Rupees

19.87

822

pi”
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Amounts In Rs '000
Ramunsration of chaimnan, chis? axecutive, directors and executives

The amounts charged in tha financial stalements for the remuneration, inciuding all benefits, to the chaimman, chiel axecutive, directors and axacutives of the Group wera as
follows.

Chalrman Chlef Executive 2] 13 Executl Total
For the For the aix For the year For the six Fer the six For the For the six For the For the six
year months anded maonths For the year manths yeoar monihs yoar menths
sndad period June 30 period onded period onded pariod anded pariod
June 30, anded Juna 2014 4 snded June  June 30, 2014 ended June  June 30, ended Juna  June 30, anded June
2014 30,2013 30,2013 30,2013 2014 30, 2013 2014 30, 2013
Managerial remuneration - 365 48,447 15633 41,251 16,125 608,624 174,047 896,222 206170
Ratiremeni benelits . - 7,801 2558 6,058 3137 132,789 45,188 146,448 50883
Group insurance . - k! ] -] 88 19 4,401 552 4,500 580
Reni and house maintenance - - 854 1,862 . - 176,263 53,514 177,157 55,376
Utilities - - 783 258 - - 423,780 13,118 44,583 13,374
Madical expenses - - il 42 178 66 31,080 15 098 31,33 15.206
- 365 55,830 20,360 47,555 19,347 996,847 301,517 1,100,232 341 569
Number of parsons 1 1 1 1 1 2 448 370 “_1 :ﬁ

In addition to above, an ameunt of Rs 207.7 million (June 30. 2013:; Rs 93.5 million) on accounl of variable pay to employess has been recognised in the current year / period. This
amount is payable in the following year after verification of achiavemenis against targets

Variable and special bonus paid during tha year / period includes the fol owing

Pald in Paid in
2014 2013
relatingto  relating to

2013 2012
Chiel Exaculive 7125 -
Difectors 10,857 3,855
Exactuhes 90,577 48,007
Other smpioyees 13,947 29,376
122.508 91,238

e il ——
The diractors and certain axecutives are provided wilh free use of Company cars in aczordance with their enlitiement. The chief executive s provided with free use of the Company
cor, cartain household aquipment and maintenance when neaded,

Aggregata amount charged in the financial statemants for remuneralion 1o six non-executive direciors was Rs Nil (June 30, 2013: Rs 1.975 million). During the year fee paid to
directors amount to Rs 18563 million (June 30, 2012 Rs 0,525 million) for attending board and other meelings. which is not part of remunaration.

The remuneration and fee paid 1o directors during last period Includes Rs 0.442 million and Rs 0.08 million respectively against two non-execulive directors wha wers eppainied as
execuliva directors.

The above amounis include an amount of Rs 189.01 millien {2013; Rs 75 35 milllon) on account af remuneralion of key management personnel out of which Rs 29 31 million
(2013: Rs 11.881 million) relates 1o post employmeant banelils.

As atand As al and

for the year for the aix
ended mon'::
June 30, ang:: June
2014
30, 2013
Total number of employaas as of the balance sheet date 1153 1066
Average number of employees during the year / period 1100 1069

Transactions with related parties

The related parties comprise the holding company (Lucky Holdings Limited), the ultimate holding company {Lucky Cemenl Limited) and related group companias, local associated
company, directors of tha Company, companies where directors also hald direclorship, key empioyeas (nota 34) and stalf retirement funds inote 18}. Delails of ransaciions wilh
rolated parties, other than thoss which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

Far the For the six

year months
ended pericd
June 30,  ended June
2014 30,2013
Associated companies
Purchase of goods, materials and services 17,167 62
Sale of goods and materials 1,646,191 716830
Dividends 322,629 162 379
Royalty 278,219 -

Plant capacity and annual production

- In matric fonnes except PowerGen which Is in thousands of Megawall hours:
For the yoar ended June  For the six months peried

30, 2014 ended June 30, 2013
Annual Production Annual Production
HName Plate Name Plata
Capaclty Capacity
Polyesler 122,000 108,810 122,000 54,428
Soda Ash - nole 38.1 350,000 287,448 250,000 118,864
Chemicals - note 36.2 - 15,643 - 8,291
Sodium Bicarbonate 26,000 27,000 20,000 13,070
PowerGen - nole 36.3 122,640 42,673 122,640 22,567

Production of Soda Ash was groater as compared o previous year since coal fired boilers becama online during current yeer. Further last pariod production was low dua to gas
curtailmant.

The capacity of Chemicals Is Indeterminabla bacause these are multi-product plants,
Electricily by PowerGan Is produced as per demand.

Fair value of financlal assets and liabllitles 7{ W
The carrying smounts of the financial assets and financisl tisbilities approximate their fair values and is datarmined on the basis of non-observable markel dala. W

Page 29



181

39

3%.2

Amount in Rs ‘000
Financlal risk managemant
The Group's activities axpose It to a varlety of financial risks: market risk {including currency risk, Interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk

and liquidity risk. The Group'’s overall risk management policy focuses on the unpradictability of financial markats and sseks to minimize potential
adverse sffects on the Group's financlal psrformance

Risk management framawork

The Board of Direciors has overall responsibiity for establishment and oversight of the Group's risk managament framework. The exscutive
management team |s responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management poicies. The team regulady meets and any changes
and compliance issues are reportad to the Board of Directors through the audit committee,

Risk management systems are reviewed regularly by the executive management team to reflact changes In market conditions and the Group's
activities. The Group, through its tralning and management standards and procadures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees undarstand their roles and cbligations.

The audit commitiee oversees compliance by management with the Group’s risk managament policies and procedures, and reviews the adeguacy of
tha risk managemeant framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

Markat rish

Markat risk Is the riak that tha fair valus or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changas in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of rsk currency risk, interest rate risk and othar price risk.

Interast rate risk

interest rate risk is the risk that the fa‘r values of future cash flows of a financial instrument wil fluctuate because of changes In market interest rates.
At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of Group's interest-bearing financlal instrumants ware:

Carrylng Amount
As at As at June 30
June 30, 2014 2013
Fixed rate Instruments
Financial asseis - Nota 14 103,000 102,000
Financial liabllities - Note 19.1 & 21 (993,168) (1.005,914)
{890,168) (903,914)

Variable rate Instruments
Financial liabilities - note 19.2 & 22 12,737 ,368) (3,654.549)

lZ.TST.SGBI [3,654.549}

Sensitlvity analysis for fixed rate Instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assats and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, therefore a change in interest rates at
tha balance sheet date would not affect profit or loss.

Sensltivity analysls for variable rate Instruments

It KIBOR had been 1% higher / lower with all cther variables held constant, the impact on the profit before tax for the year would have besn Rs 27.37
million {2013: Rs 36.54 million)

Fareign currency risk

Forelgn currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becausa of changes in foreign exchange
rales. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where recaivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into are denominated in foreign
currencies, The Group is exposed (o foreign cumency risk on sales and purchases which are entered In a currency other than Pak Rupaes. When the
management expects future depreciation of Pak Rupees, the Group enters into forward fareign exchange contracts in accordance with State Bank of
Pakistan instructions and the Group's treasury policy. The policy allows the Group to take curency exposure within predefinad imits while open
axposures are rigorously monitared.

Following is the gross balance shast exposure classified into separate foreign currencies

EURO usD GBP JPY

As at June 30, 2014

Trade debts - - - -
Other receivables 4,092 11,280 - -
Cash and bank balances - 5,897 - -
4,082 18,177 - -
Trade and other payables {63,171}  {1,276,899) (1,050,236) {104)
{3rosa balance sheat exposure 159,0791 !1.258.722! (1.050.?5}' {104)

As at June 302013

Trade debts - 7.861 - -
Other receivables 1,188 722,914 - -
Cash and bank balances - 53,265 - -
1,156 784,040 - -
Trade and other payables (143,565)  (1,416,283) {545.421) {1.321)
Gross balance sheet exposure (142,409} (3_3&343) (545,421) {1,321}

E{lﬂ“"
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Significant exchangs rates appliad during the year / period were as follows:

Amount In Rs '000

Average rate Spoet rate
For the six
th
For the year iy As at June As at June 30,
ended June period 30, 2014 2013
30, 2014 ended June '
30, 2013
Rupees per Rupees Rupoes
EURO 134.87 128.92 134.94 130.18
usb 98.90 98.22 98.80 99.68
GBP 168.43 151,53 168.16 151,80
JPY 0.98 1.03 0.97 1.01
Sensitivity analysis

Every 1% increase or decrease in exchange rate with all other variables hekd constant will decrease or increasa profit before tax for the year by Rs
23 68 million (2013: Ra 13 21 milicn). Tha following table demonstrates the sensitivity to the change in exchange rates. As at June 30, 2014, if Pak
Rupes (PKR) had weakened / strengthensd by 1% against other currencies, with all other variables held constant, the effect on the Group's profit
before tax at June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 would be as follows

Increase / Effect on Effect on
decreass in Profit Profit e Effacton
Profit before || Profit before
exchangsa before tax before tax 1ax (GBP) tax {(JPY)
rates {EURD) {USD)
2014
Pak Rupee +1% 591 12,587 10,502 1
Pak Rupee -1% {591) (12,587} {10,502) (1}
2013
Pak Rupes +1% 1,424 6,323 5,454 13
Pak Rupee -1% {1.424) 16,323) (5,454) {13}
Credit risk

Credit risk represants the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter-parties falled completely to perform as contracted.
The Group does not have significant exposure to any individual counter-party. To reduce exposure to credit risk the Group has developed a formal
approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers The management also continuously monitors the credit exposurs towards the
customers and makes provision against thosa balances considered doubtfut of recovery. To mitigate the risk, tha Group has a system of assigning
credit limits to its customers based on an extensive avaluation based on cusiomer prefile and payment history. Outstanding customer recelvables are

regularly monitored. Some customers are also secured, where possible, by way of inland letters of credit, cash security deposit, bank guarantees and
insurance guarantess.

The Group's gross maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is as foliows:

Financlal assets

Long-term invesiment - note 5
Leng-term loans - note &
Long-term deposits - note 7
Trade debts - note 10

Leans and advances - nots 11
Trade deposits - note 12
Other receivables - note 13
Bank balances - note 14

40.2 The Group has placed its funds with banks which is rated A-1 by Standard & Poor's and P-1 by Moody's.

40.3  Financlal assets

~ Secured
= Unsecured

Fage 31

As at June  Asat.June 30,
30, 2014 2013
2,500 2,500
256,526 202,07
25,679 24,832
B83,710 891,186
193,000 160,640
26,008 17,165
1,201,666 796,111
850,210 828,467
3‘439.297 2,922,772
483,507 568,817
2,955,790 2,353,855
3,439,297 2,822,772

pf

ﬂ,ud



Amount In Rs 000

40.4 The ageing of rade debts and loans and advances at the balance sheet date is as follows

As at June As at June 30,

30, 2014 2013
Not past due 922,537 984,118
Past due but not impairad:
Not more than three months 106,382 63,046
Past due and Impalred:
More than three months and not more than six months 3,726 2,000
More than six months and not more than nine months 4,448 -
Mora than nine months and not more than one year 2,31 -
More than one year 138,242 103,858
255,129 169,804
Less: Provision for:
= Doubtful debts - nota 10 93,664 94,802
- Doubtful loans and advances - note 11 7,292 7.282
100,956 102,094
1,076,710 1.051,826
40.4,1 Thers wera na past dus or impalred receivables from related parties.
40,5 The maximum exposure to credit risk for past due and impaired at the reporting date by type of counterparty was:
Wholesale customers 98,064 1.181
Retall customers 26,008 16,650
End-user customers 131,067 151,974
256,129 169,805
Less: Provision for
- Doubtful debts - note 10 93,664 94 802
- Doubtful loans and advances - nota 11 7,292 7.292
100,956 102,094
184,173 67,711
406 Movemant of provision for trade debts and loans and advances
Trade Debts Loans and Total Total
Advances
Balance at the beginning of the year / period 94,802 7,282 102,094 102,676
Additional pravision - note 28 1,666 - 1,666 774
Wittan off during the year / pericd {194) - {194) (302}
Provision no longer reguired {2,500) - {2,500) {1,054}
Balance at the end of the year / perod 83,664 7.292_ 100,966 102.094

40.6.1 The recommended approach for provision is to assess the top layer (covering 50%) of trade receivables on an individual basis and apply & dynamic
approach to the remainder of recalvables. The procedure introduces a Group-standard for dynamic provisioning
+ Provide an Impairmant loss for 50% of the ouistanding recaivable when overdue more than 90 days, and
+ Provide impairment loss for 100% when overdue more than 320 days.

As at As at June
40.7 Concentration risk June 30, 2014 30, 2013

Tha sector wise analysis of recaivables, comprising irade debts, loans and advances and bank balances are given below:
Textile and Chemicals 456,966 557,561
Glass 132,286 64,651
Paper and Board 12,057 2,015
Pharmaceuticals TT 862 150,600
Paints 16,893 10,369
Banks 860,210 828,467
Loans & Advances & QOthers 481,613 368.724
2,027,876 1,982,387

Less: Provision for:

- Doubtful debts - note 10 93,664 94,802
- Doubiful lnans and edvancas - note 11 7,292 7.282
100,956 102,084
1,926,920 1,880,293

40.8 Other prica risk [s the rizk that the value of future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate bacause of changes in market prices such as
equity price risk. Equity price risk is the risk arising from uncertainties aboul future values of investment securities. As at the balance sheet date, the
Group Is net materially exposed to other price rsk. Emm
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Amount In Rs '000
4 Liquidlty risk

Liquidity risk is the nsk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. Prudent liquidity risk
management implies malntaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. The Group treasury aims at maintaining flexbility in funding by keeping commitied credit lines avallable

The table below analyse the Group's financial llabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balanca shaet to the

maturity date.
Carrylng Contractual Loss than
amount cash flows one year
An at June 30, 2014
Financlal llabllitles
Trade creditors - note 21 1,387,666 {1,387,666) (1,287 ,666)
Bills payable - note 21 2,338,360 {2,338,350) (2,338,350)
Mark-up accrued on short term financing - note 21 58,454 {68,454) (58,454}
Accrued interest on secured/unsecured loans - note 21 3,152 {3,152} {3,162}
Accrued expenses - note 21 975,458 (976,458) {975,458)
Technical service fee / Royalty - note 21 23,686 {23,686) {23,636)
Distributors' security deposits - payable on
termination of distributorship - nota 21 & 21.5 106,142 {115,482) (115,482)
Contractors’ samest / retantion money - note 21 9,809 {9,809} {9,809)
Unclaimed dividends - note 21 48,692 {48,692) {48,692)
Payable for capital expenditure - note 21 328,509 {329,509) {329,609}
Others - note 21 147,565 {147,666} {147,655)
Long-term loan - nate 19 2,214,805 13,832,069) {1,188,661)
Short-term borrowings - note 22,1,22.2 & 22.3 437,368 (463,656) (453,556)

8,180,746 {9.723,538) {7,080,130)
P

It is not axpacted that the cash flows Included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier or at significantly different amount.
As at June 30, 2013

Financlal liabllities

Trade creditors - note 21 651,021 (651,021) (651,021}
Bills payable - note 21 2,113,808 {2,413,808)  (2,113,808)
Mark-up accrued on short term financing - note 21 28,465 (20,465) (28,465)
Accrued interest on secured/unsecured loans - note 21 38,733 (38,733) {38,733}
Accrued axpanses - note 21 636,188 {826,188} {836,188}
Technical service fes / royalty - note 21 680 (680) (680)
Distributors' sacurity deposits - payable on

termination of distributorship - note 21 & 21.5 118,888 {133,036) {133,036)
Contractors’ eamest / retention money - note 21 9,550 {9,550) (9,550)
Unclaimed dividends - nota 21 45,982 (45,982) (45,882)
Payable for capital expenditure - note 21 253,710 (253,710) {253,710}
Others - note 21 211,892 (211,692} {211,692)
Long-tenm loan - note 189 1,887,028 {2,448,543) (377,836)
Short-tarm borrowings - note 22,1 & 22.3 2,256,000 (2,290,387) (2,290,387}
Short-term running finance - note 22.4 398,548 (398,549) (398,549)

8,850,282 (9,458.344) !7.389.637:
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Capltal risk management Amounts in Rs' 000
The Group’s objective when managing capital is 1o safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concemn so that it can continue
to provide retums for shareholders and benefils for other slakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained
development of its businesses.

The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring retum on net assels and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes In
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders or Issue new shares. The Group also monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings including finance cost thereon, trade and other payables, less cash and bank balances. Capital signifies equity as shown in
the balance sheet plus net debt. The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 is as follows:

As at June 30, As at June 30,
2014 2013

Long-term loans 2,314,805 1,887,026
Trade and other payables 5,854,278 4,589,420
Short-term borrowings and running finance 437,368 2,654,548
Total debt 8,606,451 9,130,995
Cash and bank balances {858,204) {836,143)
Net debt 7,748,247 8,204,852
Share capital 923,591 923,591
Caplial reserves 309,643 309,643
Unappropriated profit 10,125,694 8,544,099
Equity 11,358,928 9,778,234
Capital 19,107,175 18.073,086
Gearing ratio 40.55% 45 90%

Accounting estimates and jJudgements

Income taxes

The Group takes inlo account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances where the Group's
view differs from the view taken by the income tax depariment at the assessment stage and where the Group considers that its view on
items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounls are shown as contingent liabilities (unless there is remote possibility of
iransfer of benefits). The details of the tax matters are as follows:

The Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (The Tribunal) had earlier set aside the assessment for the assessment year 1988-99 on the
issues of date of commissioning of PTA plant & depreciation thereon, restriction of cost of capitalisation of PTA plant and addition to
income in respect of trial production stocks. The re-assessment was finalised by the department on June 23, 2010 giving rise to an
additional 1ax demand. The Group had filed an appeal against the said order before the CIR (Appeals), the hearing of which has been
completed and the order Is awaited.

The tax department reopened the income tax assessment for the assessment year 2001-2002 on the ground that demerger of PTA
business from |C| Pakistan Lid. was effective from the completion date i.e. August 6, 2001. This was challenged by the Group in the
High Court which upheld the Group's conlenlion that the department did not have the right lo reopen this finalised assessment. The
department filed an appeal in the Supreme Court against the High Courl's order. The appeal was dismissed by the Supreme Court
under the principle of well known case of Eli Lilly. Afler the Supreme Court's decision on retrospectivity as mentioned above, a notice
has been issued u/s 66A of the repealed Ordinance by tax department on June 20, 2011, which was challenged by the Group In the
High Court on the basis of Supreme Court's decision as above. However, desplie the stay granled by High Court, the tax department
issued an order on May 7, 2012 and raised the demand of the additional tax liabllity of Rs 19 million. The Group filed an appeal before
The Tribunal which decided the case in Group's favour on the basis that order issued on May 7, 2012 was time barred. The tax
department has also Issued an order through which Tribunal's order has been given effect and Group's posilion has been accepled.

For the assessment year 2002-2003 on receipt of notice under section 62 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1978, the Group had filed a
writ petition in the Supreme Court 'afier it being dismissed by the Sindh High Court on maintainability', challenging the tax depariment’s
nofice that the eflective date of PTA’s demerger was August 6, 2001 ralher than the effeclive dale given in the Scheme of Arrangement
as October 1, 2000. That notice had raised cerlain issues relating o vesting of PTA assets by the Group. It is the Group's contention
that such an action is unwamrantad and which has fllegally changed the settled position.

Whilst amending the assessment for the Tax Year 2003, 2004, 2005, 2007, 2008 and 2010 The department has taken cerain action in
the order, considered by the depariment as “protective assessment™ on the matter of unabsorbed depreciation carried forward. it is the
Group's contention that such an action Is unwarranted. The CIR (Appeals) has also passed the orders for these lax years during the
year ended June 30, 2014 theraby accepting the Group's contention on the issue of carrying forward of unabsorbed depreciation. The
depariment has filed an appeal against the orders of the CIR (Appeals) In the Tribunal which are pending for hearing. .

In Apri 2012, a notice had been issued by the tax department for recovery of fax demand of Rs 271 million for Tax year 2003 and Rs
310 million for Tax year 2004 on account of unabsorbed lax depreciation relating to the demerger of PPTA business. This notice has
been Issued by the tax department on the basis that revenue cases cannot be stayed by the High Court of Sindh for & period of more
than six months as mentioned In Article 199(4A) of the Constitution of Pakistan. The Group through its counsel has filed a reply to The
department stating that since our assessments are protective assessments and as stated in the order the demand can only arise after
the matter Is finally decided by the Supreme Court for assessment year 2002-03, No aclion has been taken by the 1ax department afler
the reply of the Group.

Notice under section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for rectification of deemed assessment order for the Tax Year 2005 has
been Issued 1o disallow unabsorbed depreciation carried forward. A writ petition against the said notice has been filed with the High
Court of Sindh which is pending for hearin
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For Tax Year 2006, the case had been selected for audit / scrutiny and whilst framing the order tax depariment has taken certain action
in the orders, considered by the depariment as “proteclive assessments” on the matter of unabsorbed depreciation carried forward. A
tax demand of Rs 616 million was raised in the order. It is the Group's contention that such an action is unwarranted. An appeal before
the CIR (Appeals) on the matter has been decided in the Group's favour and carrying forward of unabsorbed depreciation has been
allowed. The department has filed an appeal against the order of the CIR (Appeals) in the Tribunal which Is pending for hearing.

In June 2012, whilst amending the assessment for the Tax Year 2009, the tax department had disallowed the unabsorbed depreciation
on the ground that there was no brought forward depreciation from Tax Year 2008 and a demand of Rs 972 million was created. It was
the Group's contention that such an aclion was unwarranled. This position was totally different from the position taken earlier by the tax
department. The Group had filed an appeal before the High Court of Sindh challenging the said order which had decided the case with
the direction that the matier will be finalised by the CIR (Appeals) within six weeks from the date of High Court's Order. On August 15,
2012 CIR (Appeals) issued its order and upheld the order passed by the tax department earler. The Group then filed an appeal before
the Appellate Tribunal Intand Revenue against the sald order of CIR (Appeals) as well as for the stay of demand. On November 15,
2012, the Tribunal decided the case in Group's favour on the basis that the original assessment order for assessment year 2001-02
passed on May 29, 2002 is now crystallized and therefore unabsorbed depreciation is available io the Group. The tax depariment has
also issued an order giving effect to the Tribunal's decision through which the unabsorbed depreciation has been allowed to be carried
forward for adjusiment in Tax Year 2009. Subsequently in July 2013 the tax depariment had also passed an order for Tax Year 2010
whereby allowed the benefit of carried forward depreciation from Tax Year 2009.

Penslon and Gratuity
Certaln actuarial assumplions have been adopled as disclosed in nole 18 lo the consolidated financial statements for valuallon of

present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets. Any changes In these assumptions in fulure years might affect
gaing and losses in those years.

Property, plant and aquipment

The estimates for revalued amounts, if any, of different classes of property, plant and equipment, are based on valuation performed by
external professional valuer and recommendation of technical teams of the Group. The said recommendations also include estimates
with respect to residual values and depreciable lives. Furlher, Ihe Group reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment on an
annual basis. The fulure cash flows used in the impairment tesling of assels Is based on management's best estimates which may
change In future periods. Any change in the estimales in future years might affect the camying amounts of the respeclive items of
property, plant and equipment with a corresponding affect on the depreciation charge and impaiment.

Standards or interpretations not yet effective

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent wilh those of the previous
financial year except as follows:

New, amended and revised standards and Interpretations of IFRSs

The Group has adopted the following revised standard, amendments and interpretation of IFRSs which became effective for the current
year:

IFRS 7 — Financlal Instruments: Disclosures — (Amendments) - Amendments enhancing disclosures about offsetling of financial assets
and financial liabilities

IFRIC 20 - Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

IFAS 3 - Profit and Loss Sharing on Deposits

Improvements to accounting standards issued by the IASB

IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Stalements - Clarification of the requirements for comparative Information
IAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment - Clarification of servicing equipment

IAS 32 - Financlal instruments: Presentation — Tax effecis of distribution to holders of equity instruments

IAS 34 — Interim Financial Reparting - Interim Financial Reporting and segment information for total assets and liabilities

The adoplion of the above revision, amendments interpretation of the standards did not have any effect on the consolidated financlal

stalemenls.‘?ﬂm(
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Standards, Interpretations and amendments to approved Accounting Standards that are not yet sffective

The following are the standards and interpretations, which have been issued but are not yet effective for the current financlal year:

Effective date
Standard or Interpratation (annual periods

beginning on or after)

IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Staiements January 01, 2016
IFRS 11 = Joint Arrangements January 01, 2015
IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities January 01, 2015
IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement January 01, 2015
IAS 18 & 38 — Clarification of Acceptable Method of Depreciation and Amortization Janvary 01, 2018
IAS 18 & 40 — Agricutture: Bearer Planis January 01, 2016
IAS 18 — Employee Contributions July 01, 2014

IAS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial liabllities — (Amendment) January 01, 2014
IAS 36 —~ Recoverable Amount for Non-Financial Assels — (Amendment) January 01, 2014
|AS 38 — Novalion of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting — (Amendment) January 01, 2014
IFRIC 21 - Levies January 01, 2014

The Group expects that the adoption of the above amendments and interpretation of the standards will not affect the Group's financial
statements in the perlod of initial application.

In addition fo the above standards and inferpretations, amendments to various accounting standards have also been issued by the
IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting perieds beginning on or after 01 July 2014. The Group expects that
such improvements to the standards will not have any impact on the Group's financial staiements in the period of inilial application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by |IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in

Pakistan.

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement January 01, 2018
IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferrat Accounts January 01, 2016
IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers January 01, 2017

45 Post balance sheet events - dividends
The directors In their meeting held on have recommended a final dividend of Rs _____ per share {2013: Rs Nil per
share} In respecl of the year ended June 30, 2014. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014 do not
include the efiect of the above dividend which will be accounted for in the perlod in which it s approved.

46 Date of authorization
These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on

47 General

47.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees except as staled otherwise.

47.2 During the period ended June 30, 2013 the Group changed its financial year from December 31 {0 June 30. Accordingly, the
corresponding figures In the consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated cash

flow stalement and consolidated stalement of changes in equity pertain to the half year ended June 30, 2013 and, hence, are not
comparable.

47.3 Comesponding figures have alsc been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation. However, there has
been no material reclassification to report except for reclassification of eligible retired employees' medical scheme from differed liabllities
to accrued expenses in trade and other payables amounting to Rs. 39.714 million.

AN

Muhammad Sohail Tabba Asif Jooma Muhammad Abid Ganatra
Chairman / Director Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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